
Planning Commission Meeting Agenda,  

Monday April 3, 2023 - 6:00 PM 
Cologne Community Center, 1211 Village Parkway 

Vision Statement 
The City of Cologne is a vibrant small town that respects its heritage, embraces 

its future and offers a high quality of life for all who live, work and visit our 
community. 

                          Chairperson:     Bernie Shambour                
            Commissioner:     Vickie Selness 
            Commissioner:     Jenn Brewington 
            City Council Liaison:  Carol Szaroletta 
            Commissioner:     Kevin Fafinski 

 
NOTE: AGENDA ITEMS ARE APPROXIMATE AND SUBJECT TO CHANGE ACCORDING TO LENGTH OF 
DISCUSSION. TO ENSURE THAT YOU ARE PRESENT FOR ITEMS OF INTEREST, PLEASE ARRIVE AT 6:00 PM. 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER & ROLL CALL 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
3. ADOPT AGENDA 
4. PLANNING COMMISSION BUSINESS 

a. March 6, 2023 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
b. Village Market Concept Plan Presentation 
c. Kingdom Hall Sign Replacement Permit Application 

 
5. BOARD REPORTS  

 
6. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
7.  ADJOURN 



Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

Monday March 6, 2023 - 6:00 PM 
Cologne Community Center, 1211 Village Parkway 

Vision Statement 
The City of Cologne is a vibrant small town that respects its heritage, embraces 

its future and offers a high quality of life for all who live, work and visit our 
community. 

                          Chairperson:     Bernie Shambour                
            Commissioner:     Vickie Selness 
            Commissioner:     Jenn Brewington 
            City Council Liaison:  Carol Szaroletta 
            Commissioner:     Kevin Fafinski 

 
NOTE: AGENDA ITEMS ARE APPROXIMATE AND SUBJECT TO CHANGE ACCORDING TO LENGTH OF 
DISCUSSION. TO ENSURE THAT YOU ARE PRESENT FOR ITEMS OF INTEREST, PLEASE ARRIVE AT 6:00 PM. 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER & ROLL CALL 

Chairperson Shambour called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM with Commissioners 
Brewington, Selness and Szaroletta present.  Also present were City Administrator – 
Jesse Dickson, City Clerk – Michelle Morrison and City Planner – Cindy Nash.  
Commissioner Fafinski was absent. 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
3. ADOPT AGENDA 

Motion by Commissioner Brewington to adopt the agenda as presented, second by 
Commissioner Selness.  Motion carried 4-0. 
 

4. PLANNING COMMISSION BUSINESS 
a. February 6, 2023 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

 
Motion by Commissioner Selness to approve the February 6, 2023 Planning 
Commission Minutes, second by Commissioner Brewington.  Motion carried 4-0. 
 

b. Accessory Structures Ordinance 
i. Collaborative Planning Memo 
ii. Accessory Structure Redline Draft 

Chairperson Shambour recapped discussions from the February 6, 2023 around the 
accessory structure ordinance with a goal of aligning the Ordinance with other cities, 



reducing ambiguity and rely on math calculations to meet requirements. City planner 
Cindy Nash then reviewed her memo and draft of the ordinance with the 
Commissioners.  After discussion it was the consensus of the Commissioners to change 
the R-1 Lot Coverage to 35% and move forward with the next steps that include 
advertising the public hearing for the new Ordinance that will take place on May 1st. 

 
5. BOARD REPORTS  
6. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

The Commissioner’s had a discussion on blight and the procedures being followed to 
address the issues. 
 

7.  ADJOURN 
Motion by Commissioner Brewington to adjourn at 6:40 PM, second by Commissioner 
Szaroletta.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Respectfully Submitted:     Attest: 

___________________________  ___________________________ 

Michelle M Morrison, City Clerk   Bernie Shambour, Chairperson 

 



Collaborative Planning, LLC 
 

PO Box 251, Medina, MN  55340 
Phone 763.473.0569 

 

 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Jesse Dickson, City Administrator 
 
From: Cindy Nash, City Planner 
 
Date: March 31, 2023 
 
Subj:  Cologne Village Commercial Concept Plan 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
I have reviewed the concept plan and have the following comments: 
 
 

1. The Comprehensive Plan guides the property as Retail and Other Commercial. A 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment will be required to develop any portion of the 
property for residential uses. 
 

2. The property is part of an existing Planned Unit Development that also requires 
all of this area to be retail/commercial.  An amendment to the PUD would also be 
required prior to approval of any permits for residential uses.  If the PUD is being 
modified to address the addition of apartments, the commercial portion of the 
concept needs to have sufficient enough detail to address the commercial items of 
the PUD (see comments below). 
 

3. There have been significant changes in stormwater requirements since the Village 
at Cologne was originally planned in the early 2000’s.  Please consult with the 
City Engineer regarding potential stormwater requirements for this development 
site. 
 

4. The narrative states that the commercial lots will be subdivided into separate lots 
that all front on a public street.  The existing driveway does not appear to be a 
platted street and may not have been constructed to city standards. In addition, the 
existing parking lot may not meet city requirements for setbacks from the “road” 
or access separation requirements.  
 

5. The existing PUD utilizes a shared parking concept with parking shared between 
and central to all buildings to balance between off-setting daytime and evening 



 

2 
 

peak hour customers.  This original proposed design resulted in a reduction in the 
amount of parking required.  If the concept plan changes to individual lots and a 
design that does not facilitate logical sharing of parking, then part of the PUD 
amendment would be to remove or adjust that shared parking concept.  
 

6. Provide a title commitment for review as there may be recorded documents 
related to the previous partial development of this site that may have impact upon 
how this project moves forward. 
 

7. Consider adding pedestrian infrastructure from the proposed apartment building 
to the trail adjacent to Village Parkway as well as to the future commercial area.  
 



  

 
Cologne Village 
Commercial Concept Plan 

Prepared by Community Asset Development Group 



Community Asset Development Group is seeking approval of a concept plan for Outlot A, The Village Market.  CADG has executed a purchase 

agreement to acquire the property.   The following plat map depicts the parcel being acquired: 

 

The revised concept plan envisions a multi-family apartment on the west third of the property with the east portion of the 14.35 acres 

planned for retail and office.  The retail element the plan would include a small grocery/ convenience  store with gas with the three remaining 

buildings being a mix of office and retail.  As planned, the concept will comply with City requirements for setbacks, parking and building 

design standards.  The following is an image of the concept plan: 



 



As the project proceeds, we anticipate subdividing the outlot so that each of the uses are located on separate parcels with direct access to a 

public street.  A master association will be created to assure compliance with architectural standards and to provide for joint maintenance and 

upkeep of such things as signs, landscaping and parking lots. A development identification sign will be located at the north east corner of the 

property. 

Consistent with the design of adjacent properties such as the school, city hall and child care center, exterior building material for the retail/ 

office facilities will be a mix of brick, stone, Hardie board and glass.  Concept images of the retail buildings are shown below: 

 

Access to the retail portion of the development will be off of the existing round about which is consistent with the current approved City plan. 

Traversing through the site is a watermain which is shown on the plat. The retail building pad locations have been designed to avoid impacting 

the easement. The concept will be to expand this existing easement for inclusion of a sanitary sewer line to serve the parcels. 

 When this area was originally developed, watermain and sanitary sewer lines were sized and installed to serve the development.  The overall 

stormwater plan was based on a similar level of development as is being shown in the revised plan and thus we envision that the existing 

storm water ponds are adequate to serve this plan.  If necessary, the concept has shown a location on the north side of the parcel for an 

addition pond. 



The multi-family building will be a 3-story building generally consistent with the following image. 

 

The current design is for 67 units consisting of a mix of one bedroom and 2-bedroom units 

with amenities such as a community room, exercise room, business center, outdoor patio 

and pet park.  The site plan has been designed to place the parking lot adjacent to the 

retail element as opposed to the residential to the west.  Under this design the rear yard 

of the apartment will be adjacent to the existing wetlands and rear yards of the residential 

creating an appropriate transition between the two uses.  The apartment parking will 

meet the City’s required parking of 2 spaces per unit.  Access to the site will be from the 

existing curb cut provided on Village Parkway .  The exterior materials of the apartment 

will be constituent with the required materials for the retail with the primary material 

being Hardi board. 

 

 

 



Utility extensions to serve the property are shown in the following plans: 

 

 

 

 

Currently we are actively marketing the retail portion of the site and are working with two investment groups on the 67-unit apartment.  To 

effectively market the site, we need to assure potential buyers that the plan is generally supported by the City. 

We truly look forward to working closely with the City on the implementation of this concept.  CADG understands that prior to proceeding we 

will need to obtain City approvals for modification of the PUD, subdivision and site and build plan approvals.  If you have questions or desire 

additional information regarding our plans feel free to contact me at your convenience. 




















	Planning Commission Agenda April 3, 2023
	March 6, 2023 Minutes
	Collaborative Planning Village Commercial Concept comment memo 3.31
	Concept Plan for Village Market Outlot A
	Kingdom Hall Sign Replacement Permit Application

